
    

AGENDA 
CLARK COUNTY COMBINED HEALTH DISTRICT 

BOARD OF HEALTH 
December 17, 2020 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1.  Call Meeting to Order 
 

2.   Roll Call 
 

3.  Minutes of the November 19, 2020 Meeting 
 

4.  Activity Reports: 
A. Nursing Division (Christina Conover) 
B.   Environmental Division (Larry Shaffer) 
C.   Early Childhood (Lori Lambert) 
D.   Women, Infants, & Children (Emily Thomas) 
E.   Vital Statistics (Shannon Hackathorne) 
F.   Financial Report (Lindsey Hardacre) 
G.  Legislative Update (Charles Patterson) 
 

5.  Monthly Vouchers (Lindsey Hardacre)  
A. Payment Approval 
B. Transfers/Advances, if necessary 

 

6.  Special Report 
  

7.  Old Business 
A. Third Reading – Environmental Health Fees (Larry Shaffer) 

 

8.   New Business 
A. Employee Raise Package (Charles Patterson) 
B. Position Upgrades 

(1) Krystal Coleman (Lori Lambert) 
(2) Jessica Beike (Larry Shaffer) 

C. Special Waste System Contract (Charles Patterson) 
D. Contract Renewals (Charles Patterson) 

(1) Physicians 
(a) Dr. Bashir, TB 
(b) Dr. Monjot, TB Backup 
(c) Dr. Thompson, Medical Director 
(d) Dr. Wilson, Medical Director Alternate 

(2) Madison/Champaign Epi 
(3) Harding Road Pharmacy 
(4) Rabies – Local Veterinarian 

E. 2020 Budget Appropriations (Lindsey Hardacre) 
F. 2021 Vaccine & Supply Purchase Plans (Christina Conover) 
G. MOU with The Diabetes Assoc. & Champaign Public Health (Christina Conover) 
H. Public Health Emergency Preparedness Grant Submission (Christina Conover) 
I. PHDMC Contract for Disease Investigation (Christina Conover) 
J. Class II Composting Facility and C&DD License Renewals (Larry Shaffer) 

(1) Paygro 
(2) Northeast Landfill 
(3) Springfield Landfill 
(4) Central Springfield Compostery    

 

10. Health Commissioner’s Comments 
 
 
 



    

 
 

11. Executive Session – if necessary 
 

12. Additional Business – if necessary 
 

13. Next Meeting Date – Thursday, January 21, 2021 
 

Adjournment 
 
 



 
 

Clark County Combined Health District 
Board of Health Minutes 

November 19, 2020 
 
 
President Catherine Crompton called the November 19, 2020 Clark County Combined Health District Board of 
Health meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Board members present: Catherine Crompton, Marianne Potina, William Scarff, Valerie Moore, Dala DeWitt and 
Dana King.  
 
Board members absent: Bernadette deGuzman. 
 
Staff present: Charles Patterson, Health Commissioner; Larry Shaffer, Director of Environmental Health; Christina 
Conover, Director of Nursing; Emily Hawke, WIC Director; Lori Lambert, Early Childhood Director; Lindsey 
Hardacre, Fiscal Officer; Shannon Hackathorne, Administrative Assistant to the Health Commissioner; Rick 
Holbrook, IT Technician; Kyle Trout, Communications Coordinator and Dr. Laura Thompson, Medical Director.  
 
Others present:  none 
 
Minutes: The minutes of the October 15, 2020 Board of Health meeting were approved as submitted.  
 
Activity Reports: 
 
Nursing: Ms. Conover advised that we started reproductive health services at McKinley Hall on Tuesday. She said 
we spend half a day at the jail and half a day at McKinley Hall and we are thankful for that opportunity to partner. 
She said this is abbreviated because as you might remember we received money for Montgomery County services 
through reproductive health and we need to balance that which takes out a day we are not able to provide services 
in Clark County. She said we look forward to the time when we can transition that to a partner in Montgomery 
County. She said Ms. Britney Bruce is working with one of the federally qualified healthcare centers there in hopes 
that they will eventually take that over so we can pull resources back.  
 
Ms. Conover said the Mercy Health system is allowing us to borrow the former Occupational Health building 
located at 2501 East High Street. She said one of the groups that moved from this building to allow more space 
for contact tracers is the Health Planners as they are not necessarily tied to the clinic rooms and were able to 
relocate. She said they took part of the contact tracing of calling contacts with them. She said due to the 
overwhelming number of cases we have had to do things differently. She said we have split responsibilities 
between calling positives with another group calling contacts which helps everyone become a little more efficient 
at their part. She said with that the Health Planners took that piece and we are hiring people to help with that so 
they can get back to some of their programs and grant based deliverables. She said additionally, Ms. Shannon 
Hackathorne and Ms. Stephanie Johnson have taken pieces as well such as quarantine letters and entering 
people into the Ohio Contact Tracing System so monitoring can continue. She said we have had great response 
from all the divisions to work on the weekends. She said we are calling the Occupational Health building CTEC 
(Covid Testing and Evaluation Clinic) and we began testing there last week in the front part of the building.  She 
said that is a small test with a Nurse Practitioner who we would eventually like to have access pediatric patients 
to do an age appropriate sick visit and another nurse doing testing. She said we are using the regional lab for 
testing and though there is no out of pocket cost they do have to collect insurance information which makes the 
form quite cumbersome so we have two support staff as well to support 20 hours of testing. She said we are 
testing Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday. She said we are doing about 70 tests per day.  
 
Ms. DeWitt asked if the testing is done by appointment. Ms. Conover confirmed that testing is by appointment. 
 
Ms. Conover said we continue to talk to the hospital about vaccine and Mr. Patterson will go a little more into what 
we know so far about that.  
 
Dr. Crompton asked what the turnaround time is for the regional lab. Ms. Conover said it is about 48-72 hours.  
 
Ms. Conover said we were able to do a pop up clinic last Sunday using the Mako lab, but unfortunately we are 
still waiting on some of those results.  
 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 2 

Ms. DeWitt asked how many were tested at the pop up clinic. Mr. Patterson advised that we tested about 800 
people.  
 
Ms. DeWitt said she was honored to be able to help with the clinic and it was well run and great to see the core 
of very dedicated staff.   
 
Ms. Conover said we have changed our messaging since the last we met and sent out a health alert to the 
providers that says if you are the provider who ordered the COVID-19 test you need to call the client to tell them 
they are positive and talk with them about isolation versus saying the Health Department will notify you if you need 
to do something different, which is just not always possible. She said we have pushed information out to the public 
about what quarantine and isolation means and calling their own contacts. She said we are thankful that Mr. 
Patterson was able to begin pushing that message out before it became the theme from the Ohio Department of 
Health and other health departments. 
 
Ms. Moore said it is a great thing that we are able to do testing as many places are overflowing and having testing 
shortages with the increasing numbers.   
 
Mr. Scarff said having the information about what happens after the test is also very helpful.  
 
Environmental Health: Mr. Shaffer said Ms. Monica Janes started with us recently as a Sanitarian in Training. Ms. 
Janes grew up in Kettering and completed a Bachelor’s of Science degree in Earth and Environmental Science 
at Wright State University. He said she is excited to start her career with us and we are happy to have her. He 
said it is very difficult to attract and keep good talent. He plans to have Ms. Janes come to a more normal meeting 
when those resume.  
 
Mr. Shaffer said the Environmental Health Division continues to be a resource in the community for guidance 
related to the Director of Health’s Orders, enforcement, fit testing, contact tracing and pop-up testing clinics. He 
expressed kudos to Ms. Elizabeth DeWitt, Mr. Dan Lynch and Ms. Megan Davis as they passed the 2,000 mark 
for persons fit tested for N95 masks.  
 
Early Childhood: Ms. Lambert said the home visiting staff participated in a virtual conference, which was a great 
experience for staff with exceptional content. She said it was timely and a good diversion for a few days.  
 
Ms. Lambert shared a couple of our new t-shirts. The first is one for baby that says “My mommy quit smoking for 
me” that we love to give out. The second is from the Strong Start group to reduce infant mortality that has the 
Moms & Babies First logo on it, which we are also very excited about.  
 
WIC: Ms. Hawke said last month she mentioned that during fiscal year 2020 our project was at or above our 
assigned caseload for the whole year and she is following up to report that our project was one (1) out of three (3) 
of 74 total WIC projects in the state that were at or above their assigned caseload which is a great accomplishment. 
She said we are starting fiscal year 2021 at an increased assigned caseload and we are currently at our assigned 
level. She said we are very proud of all the efforts the staff are asserting to continue with the recruitment and 
advocacy for the WIC program. She said we are especially impressed with this accomplishment through COVID-
19 as that was half of our fiscal year.  
 
Vital Statistics:  Ms. Hackathorne said there was nothing new or unusual to report.  
 
Financial Report: Ms. Hardacre said we received $200,000.00 from the county for personnel expenses paid out 
the past seven (7) to eight (8) months.  
 
Mr. Patterson said to clarify that was CARES Act money the county had, which was used for overtime that we 
have spent during the COVID-19 response that we originally thought we would request reimbursement from 
FEMA. He said the request to FEMA is a very rigorous process that requires a ton of paperwork and Ms. Hardacre 
was able to work with the county to get $200,000.00 of that reimbursed through the CARES Act money versus 
FEMA. He said it was a lot of work to get that done but much less work than going through FEMA.  
 
Ms. Hardacre said this was a good opportunity for us as other counties who have submitted requests through 
FEMA are getting some pushback, even on the overtime.  
 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 3 

Mr. Patterson said even the Emergency Management Agency (EMA) is still fighting FEMA for their first costs back 
to March and have spent multiple days and many hours submitting and resubmitting additional paperwork, so this 
was a blessing for us to be able to get that $200,000.00 without having to jump through all the hoops. He thanked 
Ms. Hardacre for her hard work to get this done.     
 
Legislative Update: Mr. Patterson said substitute House Bill 404 passed this week. He said the authority we have 
that allows Dr. King to be online with us and allowed us to have meetings online early on was set to expire on 
December 1, 2020 and this bill basically allows us to continue that through mid-year 2021. He said if we have 
other situations where Board members cannot attend or things become worse and we decide not to meet in person 
this piece of legislation allows us to meet online. He said substitute Senate Bill 311 passed the Senate this week 
and is at the House of Representatives for them to make any changes. He said we have talked about this bill 
several times which reduces the Director of Health and Governor’s authority in a public health emergency. He 
said some other more detrimental things passed out of that. Senator Roegner is one of the primary proponents to 
this bill and many of the local health department related issues have been pulled from this and many of our health 
departments in her district including the Summit County Health District have brought the Senator to a Board of 
Health meeting and had a discussion to help her understand that the changes she was proposing would actually 
take authority away from the locals, such as the District Advisory Council (DAC). He said the DAC would not be 
able to appoint someone they wanted to the Board of Health and would have to appoint people in specific 
categories. He said it is great that our Board happens to exactly mirror what was in that bill, but many of the local 
Boards of Health do not and they would have to make many changes. He said it appears that those more specific 
changes will not be coming back, but we have a lame duck session for the next month and half so anything can 
happen. He noted that we are fortunate that at this point that we already meet all of the requirements with the 
diverse Board of Health. We have the specific requirements with a doctor, dentist, veterinarian, nurse, nurse 
practitioner and local businessman if that is passed.   
 
Dr. Crompton said Governor DeWine said during his press conference today that passing this legislation would 
not matter as he would have to veto it. Mr. Patterson said the bill is poised to pass and we expect it to pass, but 
we do not know if they have enough votes to override the veto.  
 
Vouchers: Ms. Hardacre presented the bills.   
  
R 97-20  A resolution approving payment of the bills from October 1, 2020 through October 31, 2020 
  Motioned by: Ms. Moore 
  Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
 
  Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
  Mr. Scarff  Yes 
  Ms. Potina  Yes 
  Ms. Moore  Yes 
  Dr. Crompton  Yes 
  Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
  Dr. King  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Special Report: none 
 
Old Business:  
 
Second Reading/Public Hearing – Environmental Health Fees: Dr. Crompton opened the public hearing for the 
Environmental Health Fees at 6:28 p.m.  
 
Mr. Shaffer said in compliance with ORC 3717.45 notice of the proposed fee changes was mailed to all interested 
parties at least 20 days ago and this meeting serves as the public hearing they were invited to. He said they were 
also invited to submit comments beforehand and we have not received any comments in regards to the proposed 
fees. He noted that in most cases, the proposed for 2021 are within 10% of current fees.   
 
Dr. Crompton hearing no further comments closed the public hearing at 6:29 p.m.  
 
Public Hearing – Health Commissioner Contract: Dr. Crompton opened the public hearing for reappointment of 
Charles Patterson as Health Commissioner for the Clark County Combined Health District at 6:30 p.m. 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 4 

Dr. Crompton hearing no further comments closed the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.  
 
Dr. Crompton called for executive session. Ms. DeWitt moved to enter executive session at 6:31 p.m. to discuss 
the Health Commissioner’s contract. Mr. Scarff seconded the motion.   
 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent  Motion carried.  
 
The Board of Health returned from executive session at 6:39 p.m.  
 
R 98-20 A resolution authorizing the Board president to enter into an employment contract with Charles 

A. Patterson to reappoint him as Health Commissioner on December 1, 2020. 
 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Ms. DeWitt 
 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Ms. Potina  Yes  Motion carried.  
  
New Business:  
 
Variance Request – 3463 Ballentine Pike: Mr. Shaffer said the property owner of 3463 Ballentine Pike has 
requested a variance from Ohio’s household sewage treatment system rule which requires all components of a 
household sewage treatment system are isolated from things such buildings, driveways and property lines by 
specified distances. He said the property owner desires to build a 10’x16’ room addition. The proposed room 
addition would be 6 foot from the existing septic tank which is less than the 10 foot isolation distance required by 
rule. He said staff does not foresee any problems with operation nor contamination. He advised that a copy of the 
request, layout of the proposal and a public health ethics review is in included in the Board packet.  
 
R 99-20  A resolution approving a household sewage treatment system rules variance at 3463 Ballentine 
  Pike, Springfield, Ohio (Parcel # 0500200020300021) allowing a household sewage treatment 
  system to be installed in a location that is less than 10 feet from a dwelling with the responsible 

  party signing a Hold Harmless Agreement.  
  Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
  Seconded by:  Dr. deGuzman 
 
  Ms. Moore  Yes 
  Ms. Potina  Yes 
  Dr. King  Yes 
  Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
  Dr. Crompton  Yes 
  Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
  Mr. Scarff  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Variance Request – 2539 Old Selma Pike: Mr. Shaffer said the property owner at 2539 Old Selma Road has  
requested a variance from Ohio’s household sewage treatment system rule which requires all components of a 
household sewage treatment system are isolated from things like buildings, driveways and property lines specified 
by distances. He said the property owner desires to build a 20’x50’ utility building. The proposed building would 
be 9 foot from the existing septic tank which is less than 10 foot isolation distance required by rule. He said the 
owner has agreed to relocate the septic line from the tank to leaching trenches so it will not be under the building. 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 5 

He said staff does not foresee any problems with operation nor contamination. He advised that a copy of the 
request, layout of the proposal and a public health ethics review is including in the Board packet.  
 
R 100-20 A resolution approving a household sewage treatment system rules variance at 2539 Old Selma 

Road, Springfield, Ohio (Parcel # 3000700026201018) allowing a household sewage treatment 
system to be installed in a location that is less than 10 feet from a dwelling with the responsible 
party signing a Hold Harmless Agreement.  

 Motioned by: Ms. DeWitt 
 Seconded by: Mr. Scarff 
 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes  Motion carried.  
  
Position Upgrade – Megan Davis: Mr. Shaffer said he is pleased to announce that Ms. Megan Davis has passed 
the Registered Sanitarian exam and has been advanced to Registered Sanitarian by the Ohio Department of 
Health. He said Ms. Davis started with us in February of 2018 and has met the prerequisites for Sanitarian 2. She 
has worked diligently and has excelled in most of the environmental health programs and has become our lead 
person for food service plan review. He said Ms. Davis is known for conscientious and competent work and 
because of that, we started training her in the household sewage treatment program. He said we are asking the 
Board to advance her to Sanitarian 2.   
 
R 101-20 A resolution approving a position upgrade for Megan Davis from Sanitarian in Training to 
  Sanitarian 2, to be effective at the start of the first pay period after date of advancement by the 
   Ohio Department of Health to Registered Sanitarian.  
 Motioned by: Ms. Moore 
 Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
  
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Motorcycle Ohio Grant Submission: Mr. Shaffer said we have offered motorcycle safety training in conjunction  
with the Ohio Department of Public Safety for seven (7) years. He said they recently moved the program to the 
Ohio Bureau of Motor Vehicles. We have trained nearly 2,000 persons and the only other health department to 
offer this training is Portage County. He said the number of students we trained this year dropped from 276 to 112 
because several classes were cancelled and the rest were limited to eight (8) students instead of twelve (12) due 
to social distancing. He said three (3) other training sites permanently closed this year. He referred to the handout 
in the Board packet showing the decreased training across the state as well as the number of motorcycle related 
fatalities for the last several years.   
 
Mr. Patterson added that without Mr. Shaffer and Ms. Regina Cahill this program would not be possible. He said 
this is possible because of Mr. Shaffer’s knowledge and work. He said as a motorcycle rider Mr. Shaffer is aware 
of safety aspects and believes in the program and because of the work he has done with the airport in conjunction 
with the City of Springfield that range is one of the best in the state. He advised there is a lot of work that goes 
into this program including processing contracts, scheduling coaches and juggling coaches so we want to 
acknowledge Mr. Shaffer and Ms. Cahill’s work in this program.   
  
 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 6 

R 102-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner do all things necessary including submitting 
the grant request to the Ohio Bureau of Motor Vehicles, Ohio Department of Public Safety and 
negotiating and  executing all related contracts for the 2022 Motorcycle Ohio grant. 

 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Mr. Scarff 
 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes  
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Clark County Solid Waste Contract Renewal: Mr. Shaffer said per Ohio law the Clark County Solid Waste District 
is established by the County Commission to provide for planning for the safe handling of solid waste. He noted 
that Chapter 3734 of the Ohio Revised Code contains the laws related to solid waste of all kinds in Ohio and 
authorizes the local health department to perform work related to licensing, inspection and enforcement of solid 
waste and solid waste facilities in lieu of the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency doing this work. He said for 
many years the Clark County Solid Waste District has maintained a contract with us do this this work. He advised 
the funding we receive pays for staffing, equipment and transportation. The county benefits because we are local 
and able to have better positive effect than a state agency.  
 
R 103-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner to negotiate and execute a contract for Solid 

Waste services with the Clark County Solid Waste District for 2021. 
 Motioned by: Ms. DeWitt 
 Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes  Motion carried. 
 
Ohio Mosquito Control Grant Submission: Mr. Shaffer said for four (4) years we have participated in the Mosquito 
Control Grant which is issued by the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in conjunction with the Ohio 
Department of Health. The funding pays for a summer intern to catch and test mosquitos for West Nile Virus, the 
cost of outreach messages and the expensive equipment and supplies needed to control mosquitos. He said 
these efforts help us get warnings out to the medical community in hopes of earlier diagnosis of zoonotic illness 
and increased community awareness. He referred to the handout included in the Board packet. He noted that due 
to COVID-19 most other health departments drastically cut back in their zoonotic disease programs this year. He 
said that we were able to keep on track despite being stretched thin and testing revealed 22 mosquito pools which 
were positive for West Nile Virus. He said we followed up with door to door notification and treatment in the areas 
to knock the adult population down. He said the subsequent sampling revealed success in our control efforts.  
 
Mr. Patterson added that our mosquito intern, Ms. Ashley Seibert did a great job this year. He said she is at Wright 
State University continuing her studies while also working for us as a contact tracer and we are very fortunate to 
have her continue in that role.  
 
R 104-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner do all things necessary including submitting 

the grant request and negotiating and executing all related contracts for the 2021 Ohio Mosquito 
Control grant.  

 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Ms. Moore 
 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 7 

 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent  Motion carried.  
 
Reproductive Health Grant Submission: Ms. Conover said we are asking permission to submit the continuation 
grant for the reproductive health project.  
 
R 105-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner to do all things necessary including submitting 

the grant and negotiating and executing all related contracts for the Reproductive Health grant. 
 Motioned by: Ms. DeWitt 
 Seconded by: Ms. Moore 
 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes   Motion carried.  
 
Healthy Vending Policy: Ms. Conover said this is one of the pieces of the Creating Healthy Communities policy 
work and one opportunity we had to meet a deliverable was to change one aspect of our own food policy. She 
said we have vending machines in the staff kitchen and with some investigation of other possibilities and partners 
we would like to move ahead with having a vending policy that reflects nutritional value and the guidelines outlined.  
 
R 106-20 A resolution approving the Healthy Vending policy as submitted at the November 19, 2020 Clark 

County Combined Health District Board of Health meeting. 
 Motioned by: Ms. Moore 
 Seconded by: Mr. Scarff 
  
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent  
 Dr. Crompton  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) Coordination Contract: Ms. Conover said we are interested in 
partnering with Ms. Kim Fish at Kaleidoscope to help us with the CHIP as that is not something we have been 
able to keep moving due to the COVID-19 response. She said we anticipate that she would coordinate the steering 
committee and keep them accountable for deadlines on behalf of the health district. She said we do not anticipate 
this would be the way we would go about the Community Health Assessment (CHA) and CHIP in the future, it is 
just necessary right now during the COVID-19 response.  
 
Mr. Patterson added the funds would come from the MAC fund and would not have a detrimental effect on the 
health fund.   
 
R 107-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner to do all things necessary including negotiating 

and executing a contract with Kaleidoscope for coordination of the Community Health 
Improvement Plan (CHIP). 

 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Mr. Scarff 
 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 8 

 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Temporary Stipend: Ms. Conover said we are asking for a temporary stipend consideration for three (3) members 
of our communicable disease team that we refer to as our core communicable disease team. She said this is due 
to the increased responsibility we are asking them to take to supervise people as these are not typically supervisor 
roles. She said due to the increase in numbers we have had to hire additional contact tracers and previously the 
contract tracers have reported to Ms. Anna Jean Sauter. She said Ms. Sauter does a great job coordinating 
everything, however, with anything when you have so much onboarding there is an increase need for training and 
quality assurance and improvement and accountability processes. She said this is not possible with the large 
number of contact tracers we continue to onboard and with this reorganization this allows each if these team 
members to supervise between 7-10 direct reports. She said with the increased responsibility we felt we needed 
to acknowledge that we are asking a different sort of work from them and decided to go with a stipend so that can 
be easily pulled back when things stabilize.  
 
Dr. Crompton asked how we will decide the end point for the stipend. Ms. Conover said our thought is that we will 
retract the stipend once we are able to pull back to where we should be with a reduced workforce and Ms. Sauter 
returning to the standard 7-10 direct reports.  
 
Ms. Moore asked how we came to the $1.37 figure. Ms. Conover said there is not a lot of distance between the 
different pay grades with the way our pay scale is set up so we looked at this amount as being something that 
would not put these staff members exceedingly over other division supervisors. Mr. Patterson added that a couple 
years ago because of the market we raised the salaries of nurses and nursing supervisors and we have 
supervisors in other divisions making different amounts and trying to understand the different responsibilities went 
into determining the amount to acknowledge the additional responsibilities they are taking on, but placing them 
on the pay scale appropriately based on the other staff responsibilities and duties. He said a lot of effort was put 
into making sure this was the closest number that would provide the best parity across our pay ranges at this time.  
 
Ms. Moore asked if this stipend will be based on a 40 hour work week. Mr. Patterson said it will be for whatever 
hours are worked. Ms. Conover said these staff members are currently averaging about 50-60 hours per week.  
 
R 108-20 A resolution authorizing a temporary stipend in the amount of $1.37 per hour for Brenna Heinle, 

Alicia Sehen and Natalie Hall while taking on additional supervisory responsibilities, retroactive 
to November 9, 2020. 

 Motioned by: Mr. Scarff 
 Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Postage Purchase: Ms. Hackathorne said we typically purchase postage in the amount of $6,000.00 twice a year 
in January and June. She said due to the COVID-19 response we have used significantly more postage than 
normal and therefore we are asking to purchase our next $6,000.00 early.  
 
Ms. Moore asked if we need more postage if we are using significantly more than normal for the COVID-19 
response. Ms. Hackathorne said we may end up needing an additional purchase. Mr. Patterson said that we may 
need to come back to the Board next year to ask for additional amount. He said right now, we are just asking to 
purchase our first $6,000.00 for next year early. He added that we are transferring many of the written orders to 
e-mails as much as possible.  
 
 
 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 9 

R 109-20 A resolution authorizing an additional postage purchase of $6,000.00. 
 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Ms. DeWitt 
 
 Dr. deGuzman  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr, King  Absent  Motion carried.  
 
Bulk Paper Purchase: Ms. Hardacre said we are also using more paper than normal due to the COVID-19 
response and once again we are trying to get ahead of the game and asking for approval to purchase a bulk of 
copy paper.  
 
R 110-20 A resolution authorizing the purchase of 120 cases of bulk paper from the MAC Fund not to 

exceed $4,000.00. 
 Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
 Seconded by: Mr. Scarff 
 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Appropriations: Ms. Hardacre said we are asking for appropriations in two (2) funds. She said we received an 
additional $200,000.00 from the state that will be appropriated to the COVID fund. She said we also have fund 
8239 which is our leave accrual fund and this is being appropriated for Mr. Patterson’s payout upon retirement.  
 
R 111-20 A resolution approving budget appropriations as submitted at the November 19, 2020 Clark 

County Combined Health District Board of Health meeting. 
 Motioned by: Ms. DeWitt 
 Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Ms. Potina  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
2501 E. High Street Building Maintenance Agreement: Mr. Patterson said Bon Secours Mercy Health has allowed 
us to use the building at 2501 East High Street for three (3) to six (6) months and they have a management 
company that takes care of the building for them. He said this management company, Cushman & Wakefield 
takes care of the cleaning, pays for the alarm system, water electric and gas. He said we do not have to pay the 
lease, however, we will cover the carry costs while we are in it and we believe this agreement is more than fair. 
He said we are asking for permission to enter into an agreement with Cushman & Wakefield to cover those costs. 
He said we will receive an invoice monthly and that will be paid through an agreement with City of Springfield for 
up to $225,000.00 to pay for personnel that we have at that site in addition to the cost of keeping the building open 
for the three (3) to six (6) months. 
 
Mr. Scarff asked if this is for the whole building. Mr. Patterson confirmed it is for the whole building.  
 
Dr. Crompton asked if this covers all utilities. Mr. Patterson confirmed this will cover all utilities. He said there will  



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 10 

be one invoice that will cover everything including utilities.   
 
R 112-20 A resolution authorizing the Health Commissioner to do all things necessary including negotiation 

and executing a contract with Cushman & Wakefield for building management services at 2501 
E. High Street 

 Motioned by: Mr. Scarff 
 Seconded by: Ms. Moore 
 
 Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
 Dr. Crompton  Yes 
 Mr. Scarff  Yes 
 Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
 Ms. Potina  Yes 
 Ms. Moore  Yes 
 Dr. King  Yes  Motion carried.  
 
Position Upgrade – Lindsey Hardacre: Mr. Patterson said we are bringing the position upgrade for Ms. Lindsey 
Hardacre from Fiscal Officer to Fiscal Officer 2 to the Board. He said Ms. Hardacre has learned a lot in the past 
two (2) years and the clean audit we presented last month is the icing on the cake asking the Board to make that 
change.  
 
R 113-20 A resolution approving a position upgrade for Lindsey Hardacre from Fiscal Officer to Fiscal 
  Officer 2 to be effective November 30, 2020. 
  Motioned by: Ms. Potina 
  Seconded by: Ms. DeWitt 
 
  Ms. Potina  Yes 
  Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
  Dr. King  Yes 
  Ms. Moore  Yes 
  Mr. Scarff  Yes 
  Dr. Crompton  Yes 
  Dr. deGuzman  Absent  Motion carried.  
 
Stay at Home Health Advisory: Mr. Patterson said this is a Stay at Home Health Advisory that is a non-binding  
resolution we are asking the Board to consider as we would like to use it for public information services. He said 
this will also put us in line with other health departments doing the same thing. He said Franklin County has 
already passed this and as you know from the press conference today they are the first county to move to a purple 
warning level. He said because he knows the statistics for our county he cannot believe that Clark County is not 
purple. He said the statics the state is reporting seem to have no reflection of real life as talking with hospital 
administrators and seeing the 450-500 cases a week we are definitely meeting the criteria, however, somehow 
that information is diluted when it moves through the reporting system. He said we do not believe there is anything 
controversial in what we are saying in the advisory. He said we merely say this is a not a time to be out if not going 
to work, going to school or going out to get groceries or essential needs. He said he will not get together with 
family for Thanksgiving because this is what he believes in and is going to follow this advisory. He said there were 
a couple of other things in the advisory from other health departments that we slightly watered down, but at the 
end of the day we have the 18th highest number of total of cases in Ohio, we are the 15th highest two (2) week 
case rate at 780 cases, 100 cases per 100,000 is considered high incidence by the Center for Disease Control 
(CDC) and we had 780 cases per 100,000 over the last two (2) weeks. He said we have never had more 
hospitalizations for COVID than we have right now. He said we have never had more cases than we have had 
right now and we are on pace to eclipse the number of deaths from COVID that we had in October, which was the 
highest month we have ever had. He said we have 33 deaths already in November with 11 days left. He said we 
are asking the Board to consider this resolution to use it for press releases and try to get people to stay home to 
slow the spread. He said we are not going to shut the economy down and this is not enforceable to arrest people 
who do not stay home.   
 
Ms. Moore asked how a church planning a carry out Thanksgiving dinner for the community will be impacted by 
this advisory. Mr. Patterson said since this is a carry out dinner where the people will pick up and go we would 
consider this like going to the grocery to pick up food which is a necessity of life. He said food, clothing, shelter, 



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 11 

work and school are reasons people should be out and about so this is still allowable with the advisory and within 
the state rules. He said our intent is to stop people from doing non-essential things outside of their homes, not  
things such as this.  
 
Ms. DeWitt asked how we believe the restaurant business will perceive this order. She said many are open for  
business and it will be perceived that people should only use carry out service. Mr. Patterson said we would prefer 
people use carry out. He said if things continue as they are going we are not sure the Governor will continue to 
allow dine in.  
 
Mr. Scarff asked if this will impact people attending church. Mr. Patterson said like orders, this will not affect  
churches or allow people to attend church. He said we would like churches to consider going online for a couple 
months, but that is something that is their decision.    
 
Ms. Potina said she believes this lets the community know that as the Board of Health we are concerned about 
the health of the community so much so that we believe in putting this advisory out. 
 
Mr. Patterson said we will use this advisory as another talking point. He said when asked why the Board passed 
this we can advise because the Board is concerned. He said the Board is seeing that the hospital that has two (2) 
30 bed COVID units which had 59 patients today with at least two (2) more people in the emergency room pending 
COVID test results. He said the plan is that the hospital will begin doubling rooms. He said the hospital has also 
moved in ten (10) additional beds for more capacity. He said we have never had 60 COVID patients in the hospital 
before now. He said it is not how many cases we see it is the number of cases we are seeing in the hospital that 
really affects our ability across the county to provide good medical to all of our citizens, no matter the medical 
condition. He said the hospital has a great plan to continue to provide that care, however, they are now in red 
staffing. Ms. Potina explained that red staffing means there have been call offs and people affected and illness, 
which could be any illness, or being quarantined. She said they are pulling staff from other areas to update 
competencies to allow them to work in the areas needed. She said they have moved to a team nursing model in 
some units.  
 
Ms. DeWitt asked what kind of timeframe we are looking at if this starts on Sunday. Mr. Patterson said initially the 
advisory is for two (2) incubation life cycles of the virus which is 28 days. He said at that point the Board can 
reevaluate at the next Board meeting.   
 
R 114-20 It is hereby resolved by the Clark County Combined Health (CCCHD) District Board of Health to 

 issue a Stay at Home Health Advisory as set forth in the resolution. 
   
  WHEREAS, the mission of the CCCHD is to protect and improve the health of the community  

 through promotion of wellness, the prevention of injury and the prevention of disease; and 
    
  WHEREAS, the CCCHD is charged with controlling the spread of disease, including COVID-19 

 within our community; and  
   
  WHEREAS, the Board of Health has observed a significant increase in community spread of the 

 SARS-CoV-2 virus which causes COVID-19 disease, an increase in infected individuals seeking 
 medical care and outbreaks in multiple sectors, including businesses, congregate care / living 
 facilities, daycares, universities, and K-12 schools in Clark County; and   

   
  WHEREAS, Clark has the 18th highest total number of COVID-19 cases in Ohio and the 15th  
  highest two-week case rate (780 cases per 100,000) among 88 counties; and  
   
  WHEREAS, Clark County’s current test positivity is 11.5%; and  
   
  WHEREAS, additional guidance, advisement, warning and intervention are warranted to slow the 

 spread of the virus and preserve hospital capacity; and 
   
  WHEREAS, it is more important than ever to follow guidance from local, state, and federal officials 

 on public health interventions to slow the spread of the COVID-19 disease; and  
   



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 12 

  WHEREAS, taking the steps listed below is critical to preventing the spread of the virus, protecting 
 the lives of you and your loved ones, and preserving our acute and other healthcare services and 
 capacity; and  

 
  WHEREAS, the Clark County Health Commissioner shall keep the public informed in regard to 

 all matters affecting the health of the district.  
   
  NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the Board of Health of the Clark County Combined 

 Health District does hereby issue a Stay at Home Health Advisory for Clark County as follows: 
  

  Section 1. Stay-at-Home Advisory  
  Beginning on Sunday, November 22, 2020, the Clark County Combined Health District Board of 

 Health advises all residents to stay at home to the greatest extent possible due to the significant 
 increase in COVID-19 cases in Clark County, Ohio.  Residents are advised to only leave home 
 to go to work or school, or for essential needs such as seeking medical care, going to the grocery 
 store or pharmacy, picking up food, or receiving deliveries. Additionally, the Board of Health 

  advises against: 
    
  a) Attending social gatherings, and scheduling events designed to bring people together. 
  b) Traveling in and out of the state.  
  
  This advisory shall remain in place for two consecutive incubation periods of the SARS-CoV-2 

 virus (28 days), or until such time as the Board of Health determines a change to the guidance is 
 appropriate. 

  
  Section 2. Adherence to All Current Orders  
  All orders set forth by Governor DeWine, the Director of Health of the Ohio Department of Health, 

 Clark County, and the Clark County municipalities shall continue to be enforced and adhered to 
   by all residents.  
  
  Section 3. Private Gatherings and Holiday Celebrations 
  Residents of Clark County are advised to limit holiday celebrations this year to people in your  

 immediate household and not risk gathering with others. Traveling, hosting guests indoors, and 
 sharing food, utensils and plates all pose significant risks. Traditional private gatherings with  
 family and friends can increase the chances of getting or spreading COVID-19.  

  Residents are strongly advised to not have any indoor guests in their homes unless they are  
 performing essential work/repairs (e.g. plumbing, heating, electrical). 

  
  Section 4. Response to Illness and Exposure – Isolation and Quarantine 
  Residents that are exhibiting any signs and symptoms of COVID-19 must shelter in their place of 

 residence.  They shall not go to their workplace or congregate setting and shall only leave their 
 place of residence to seek necessary clinical care, or for essential life sustaining needs, such as 
 obtaining medicine or food. COVID-19 symptoms include, but are not limited to, new onset of 
 fever, cough, shortness of breath, congestion or runny nose, sore throat, new loss of taste or 
 smell, body aches, or unusual fatigue. Residents diagnosed with COVID-19 by a laboratory test 
 of their medical provider must isolate for 10 days from the date of their symptom onset, or from 
 the date of test collection (until you are  not experiencing symptoms). In the home, sick or 
 infected individuals should separate themselves from others by staying in a specific “sick room” 
 or area, and use a separate bathroom, if available. Residents that have been identified as a 
 contact to an individual diagnosed with COVID-19 should quarantine for one full incubation period
 (14 days) from the date of last contact. Individuals in quarantine should stay home, separate from 
 others, monitor their health, and follow all instructions from Public Health. Residents who are 
 either confirmed positive or a close contact should not wait to hear from the CCCHD and should 
 immediately follow the guidance as described. Information about isolation and quarantine can be 
 found on the CCCHD website at www.ccchd.com.  

   
  Section 5: Employers and Schools 
  Employers are strongly encouraged to identify and accommodate as many employees as possible 

 to work from home during this time.  All businesses and local governments are advised to  



    

 

Clark County Combined Health District                                                 Board of Health Minutes                                                         November 19, 2020 13 

 transition as many transactions and functions as possible to online. Universities and K-12 schools 
 are advised to continue to consult with the Health Commissioner for decision-making on modes 
 of teaching and learning. 

  Motioned by: Ms. Moore 
  Seconded by: Ms. Potina 
 
  Ms. Moore  Yes 
  Ms. Potina  Yes 
  Dr. King  Yes 
  Dr. deGuzman  Absent 
  Dr. Crompton  Yes 
  Ms. DeWitt  Yes 
  Mr. Scarff  Yes  Motion carried.    

Health Commissioner’s Comments: Mr. Patterson said we know we have some great hope the last week and 
half with two (2) vaccines as Pfizer and Moderna stage 3 testing has come out and told us they are very effective. 
He said the benchmark was 50% effectiveness put out for potential approval and at 90% and 94% we are thrilled 
with the results and hope with the very minimal side effects we are hearing that we will get those vaccines very 
soon. He said we could start seeing shipments of vaccine in December. He said Springfield Regional Medical 
Center was recently named by the state a vaccination pre-position site. He said it is a great feeling to know that 
our hospital had the foresight to purchase the ultra-low freezer because that made one of the vaccines available 
here that may not have been available. Mr. Patterson thanked Ms. Shannon Hackathorne for her hard work 
onboarding new staff the past couple weeks. He thanked Ms. Christina Conover for piecing together staff to help 
get the job done as many people are only able to work part-time hours due to these being temporary positions.  
 
The next regular Board of Health meeting will be held Thursday, December 17, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. at 529 E. Home 
Road, Springfield, Ohio. 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________    _______________________________ 
Charles A. Patterson, Secretary     Catherine Crompton, President 
Clark County Combined Health District    Clark County Combined Health District 
Board of Health       Board of Health 



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH MONTHLY REPORT 41

PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 Nov'20 YTD '20

C&DD-Active: DOMESTIC PREPAREDNESS: FOOD-MOBILE:

   Consultations 3 23    Complaints/Consultations 8 61    Consultations 2 13

   Enforcement 0 0      Field Activity Hours (Clinics, Etc.) 146 3118.5    Licenses Issued:

    Licenses, Permits, Orders Issued 0 0    Inspections/Re-Inspections 0 0       Food Establishment 0 5

   Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 2 9    Sample/Re-Sample 0 0       Food Service 2 71

C&DD-Closed:     Sample or Specimen Pick-Up/Delivery 0 2    Inspections-Standard 2 94

   Consultations 0 0    Training-Given 0 2     Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0

   Enforcement 0 0    Training-Received 0 8    Follow-Up Inspections 0 3

   Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 4 FOOD-RISK (144):    Complaints Rec'd./Investigated/FU/Pend. 0 0

CAMPGROUNDS (182):    PLAN REVIEW 2 56 FOOD-TEMPORARY:

   Consultations 0 6    Consultations 1 75    Consultations 0 0

   Licenses Issued 0 7    Licenses Issued:    Licenses Issued:

   Inspections-Standand 0 16       Food Establishment 0 198       Food Establishment 0 44

   Licenses Issued-Temporary 0 3       Food Service 2 413       Food Service 1 57

   Inspections-Temporary 0 2     Inspections-Food Establishment:    Inspections-Standard 1 77

    Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0       Standard Inspections 10 283     Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0

   Re-Inspections 2 7       PR Inspections 2 21    Follow-Up Inspections 0 0

    Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 2         Notices of Critical Viol.-Stand./PR 0 0    Complaints Rec'd./Investigated/FU/Pend. 0 0

    Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 2       Follow-Up Inspections 10 75 FOOD-VENDING:

   Complaints Investigated:    Outbreak Investigations: 0 0    Consultations 0 1

      Valid Complaints 0 1       Sample or Specimen Pick-Up/Delivery 0 0    Licenses Issued 0 63

      Notices of Violation Sent 0 0       Inspection/Sample 0 0 0 5

      Summary Compliance Abated 0 0     Inspections-Food Service:    Inspections - Misc 0 0

      Non-Valid Abated 0 1       Standard Inspections 25 658     Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0

      Complaint Re-Inspections 1 9       CCP Inspections 17 322    Follow-Up Inspections 0 0

    Complaints Pending-End of Month 2         Notices of Critical Viol.-Stand./CCP 0 1    Complaints Rec'd./Investigated/FU/Pend. 0 0

   Outbreak Investigations 0 0       Follow-Up Inspections 13 114 INDOOR AIR QUALITY:

    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0    Outbreak Investigations: 0 9    Consultations 11 151

   BOH Orders Issued 0 0       Sample or Specimen Pick-Up/Delivery 0 0    Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 17

   Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0       Inspection/Sample 0 0 INFECTIOUS WASTE:

   Plan Review 0 0     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 4    Consultations 0 6

CLEAN FILL OPERATION:     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 11 119    Enforcement 0 0

   Complaints 0 2    Complaints Investigated:    Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 1

   Consultations 3 33       Valid Complaints 3 24 INSECT/RODENT (146):

   Enforcement 0 0       Notices of Violation Sent 0 1    Bed Bugs:

   NOITF, Orders Issued 3 7       Summary Compliance Abated 0 11       Consultations 6 20

   Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 17       Non-Valid Abated 8 84         Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 1

COMPOSTING FACILITY:       Complaint Re-Inspections 3 14    Consultations-Insect/Rodent 0 0

   Consultations 5 19     Complaints Pending-End of Month 4     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 1

   Enforcement 0 0     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 1 9

   Licenses, Permits, Orders Issued 0 0    BOH Orders Issued 0 0    Complaints Investigated:

   Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 1 22    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0       Valid Complaints 0 6

   Citations into Court 0 0       Notices of Violation Sent 0 4

PROGRAM:

   Inspections-Standard



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH MONTHLY REPORT 42

PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 Nov'20 YTD '20

INSECT/RODENT (cont'd.): MERCURY (199):

      Summary Compliance Abated 0 0    Consultations 0 15       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 0

      Non-Valid Abated 1 3    Enforcement/NOV 0 1     Complaints Pending-End of Month 0

      Complaint Re-Inspections 1 4    Inspections/Re-Inspections 0 12    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0

    Complaints Pending-End of Month   Complaints Rec'd 0 1    BOH Orders Issued 0 0

    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0 MOLD:    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0

   BOH Orders Issued 0 0    Consultations 16 126    Citations into Court 0 0

   Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0    Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 2 NUISANCES-WATER/UTILITIES (160):

   Citations into Court 0 0 MOTORCYCLE OHIO:    Consultations 0 0

JAIL:    # of Classes Conducted 0 13     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 10

  Complaints Rec'd./Investigated/FU/Pend. 0 0 # SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED: MALE 0 63     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 1 25

   Consultations 0 0                        FEMALE 0 33    Complaints Investigated:

   Enforcement 0 0                        MINORS 0 1       Valid Complaints 1 21

   Inspections 0 2 # DID NOT PASS:  MALE 0 0       Notices of Violation Sent 1 18

   Inspection/Sample 0 0                        FEMALE 0 1       Summary Compliance Abated 0 0

   Re-Inspections 0 0                        MINORS 0 0       Non-Valid Abated 0 4

    Sample or Specimen Pick-Up/Delivery 0 0 # DROPPED OUT:  MALE 0 1       Complaint Re-Inspections 4 22

   Outbreak Investigations 0 0                        FEMALE 0 2     Complaints Pending-End of Month 9

LANDFILLS-CLOSED:                        MINORS 0 0     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0

   Consultations 2 14 NUISANCES-GENERAL ANIMAL (147):    BOH Orders Issued 0 0

   Enforcement 0 0    Consultations 0 1    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0

   Inspections &/or Re-Inspections 0 18     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 2    Citations into Court 0 0

LEAD:     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 24 PLUMBING (141):

   Consultations 8 73    Complaints Investigated:    PLAN REVIEW 6 78

MAN. HOME PARK (180):       Valid Complaints 0 19    Inspections 43 408

   Consultations 0 0       Notices of Violation Sent 0 11    Finals 44 400

   Inspections-Standard 0 30       Summary Compliance Abated 0 0    Permits 75 776

    Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0       Non-Valid Abated 0 5    Registrations 9 266

   Re-Inspections 0 3       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 18    Backflow Certifications 147 1821

    Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 1     Complaints Pending-End of Month 1    Consultations 2 32

    Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 5     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 6

   Complaints Investigated:    BOH Orders Issued 0 0     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 8

      Valid Complaints 0 3    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0    Complaints Investigated:

      Notices of Violation Sent 0 0    Citations into Court 0 0       Valid Complaints 0 4

      Summary Compliance Abated 0 0 NUISANCES-OTHER (149):       Notices of Violation Sent 0 0

      Non-Valid Abated 0 2    Consultations 0 0       Summary Compliance Abated 0 1

      Complaint Re-Inspections 0 1     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 0       Non-Valid Abated 0 3

    Complaints Pending-End of Month 1     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 1       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 2

    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0    Complaints Investigated:     Complaints Pending-End of Month 6

   BOH Orders Issued 0 0       Valid Complaints 0 0     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0

   Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0       Notices of Violation Sent 0 0    BOH Orders Issued 0 0

   Citations into Court 0 0       Summary Compliance Abated 0 0    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0

      Non-Valid Abated 0 1    Citations into Court 0 0

PROGRAM:

NUISANCES-OTHER (cont'd.):



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH MONTHLY REPORT 43

PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 Nov'20 YTD '20

RABIES CONTROL:    Mercury Spills 0 0 SMOKING:

   Animal Bite Investigation 8 141     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0    Administrative Review 0 0

   Re-Inspections 0 0    BOH Orders Issued 0 0    Complaints 1 18

   Consultations 0 4    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0    Consultations 0 0

   Sample or Specimen Pick-Up 2 44    Citations into Court 0 0    Fines 0 0

   Sample or Specimen Delivery 0 11 SCRAP TIRE ADDRESS: 1 14

   Citations into Court 0 0    Consultations 5 29 1 18

RADON:    Enforcement 0 0 1 6

   Consultations 4 35    Inspections 4 28    Letters Sent - Misc 0 0

REAL ESTATE: SEWAGE (143): SOLID WASTE (142):

   Consultations 0 0    Consultations 0 171    Hauler Registrations 2 11

   Inspections - Well Only 6 32    Inspections:     Truck Registrations-w/Registration Fee 0 0

   Inspections - Septic Only 3 39       Aerator Inspections 0 141      Truck Registrations-Additional Trucks 21 122

   Inspections - Well & Septic 10 146       Dye Tests/Sampling 0 1    Truck Inspections 0 147

   Re-Inspections 7 49       Finals (New/Repair) 5 113    Consultations 0 2

   Sampling 25 210       1 Year Operation Inspections 15 169     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 22

   Resampling 2 28       Site Approvals 1 34     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 10 166

RECYCLING/TRANSFER STATION:       Site Review Inspections 17 138    Complaints Investigated:

   Inspections 1 5       Subdivision Review Inspections 4 23       Valid Complaints 6 108

ROUTINE WATER:         Truck Inspections/Re-inspections 0 2       Notices of Violation Sent 8 96

   Consultations 0 0     Licenses, Permits, Orders Issued:       Summary Compliance Abated 1 2

   Sampling by CCCHD Staff 2 163       Site Review Applications 17 150       Non-Valid Abated 3 55

   Sampling by Owner (Self) 12 126       Subdivision Review Applications 4 23       Complaint Re-Inspections 17 222

   Inspections 0 2         Installation (New, Replace or Alter Permits) 18 140     Complaints Pending-End of Month 22

   Dye Tests 0 0         Operation Permits/Inspection Fees 49 522     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0

SALVAGE YARD:       Site Approval Applications 1 36    BOH Orders Issued 0 0

   Consultations 2 13       Sewage Installer Registrations 3 19    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0

   Enforcement 0 0       Service Provider Registrations 1 11    Citations into Court 0 0

   Inspections 4 30         Septage Hauler Registrations/Trucks 0 10 SWIMMING POOLS/SPAS (181):

SCHOOL/PLAYGROUND (145):       Variance Applications 1 14    Consultations 2 13

   Consultations 3 17     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 20    Licenses Issued 0 37

   Inspections-Standard 1 94     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 1 62    Inspections-Standard 6 191

   Re-Inspections 0 0    Complaints Investigated:     Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 2 14

    Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 0       Valid Complaints 0 39    Re-Inspections 4 19

    Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 1       Notices of Violation Sent 0 48     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 0

   Complaints Investigated:       Summary Compliance Abated 0 4     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 0

      Valid Complaints 0 1       Non-Valid Abated 1 19    Complaints Investigated:

      Notices of Violation Sent 0 0       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 1       Valid Complaints 0 0

      Summary Compliance Abated 0 0     Complaints Pending-End of Month 20       Notices of Violation Sent 0 0

      Non-Valid Abated 0 0     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0       Summary Compliance Abated 0 0

      Complaint Re-Inspections 0 0    BOH Orders Issued 0 0       Non-Valid Abated 0 0

    Complaints Pending-End of Month 0    Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 0

   Outbreak Investigations 0 0    Citations into Court 0 0     Complaints Pending-End of Month 0

   Letters Sent - Notice of Report

   Letters Sent - Violation Warning

PROGRAM:

   Investigations



ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH MONTHLY REPORT 44

PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 PROGRAM: Nov'20 YTD '20 Nov'20 YTD '20

SWIMMING POOLS/SPAS (cont'd.): WEST NILE VIRUS (198): WEST NILE VIRUS (cont'd.):

   Outbreak Investigations 0 0    Consultations 0 112     Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0

    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0     Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 0    BOH Orders Issued 0 0

   BOH Orders Issued 0 0     Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 20    Flyer/Information Distribution 0 190

   Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0    Complaints Investigated:    Treatments Applied 0 5

   Citations into Court 0 0       Valid Complaints 0 8 MEETINGS/TRAINING:

TATTOO/BODY PIERCING (171):       Notices of Violation Sent 0 7    Meetings 5 349

   Consultations 1 1       Summary Compliance Abated 0 0    Training-Given 8 117

   Licenses Issued/*Temporary 2 15       Non-Valid Abated 0 12    Training-Received 82 477

    Inspections-Standand/*Temporary 3 20       Complaint Re-Inspections 0 4

    Notices of Critical Viol.-Standard Insp. 0 0      Complaints Pending-End of Month 0

   Re-Inspections 0 0 REPORTED ANIMAL BITES/ Nov'20 Nov '19 Nov '19

    Complaints Pending-Beg. Of Month 2 RABIES EXPOSURE: OWNED UNOWNED YTD 2020 OWNED UNOWNED YTD 2019

    Complaints Rec'd.-Current Month 0 4 DOG: Bite/Non-Bite/Other Events 8 0 204 13 0 188

   Complaints Investigated:          Total Persons Exposed 8 186 13 187

      Valid Complaints 0 3             # People Rec. Post-Exposure 0 1 0 1

      Notices of Violation Sent 0 1             # Vaccinated at Time of Incident 0 45 1 54

      Summary Compliance Abated 0 1          # Sent to ODH-Negative 0 9 0 20

      Non-Valid Abated 0 0          # Sent to ODH-Positive/*Unsat. 0 0 0 5

      Complaint Re-Inspections 0 0 CAT: Bite/Non-Bite/Other Events 0 24 0 17

    Complaints Pending-End of Month 2          Total Persons Exposed 0 25 0 16

   Outbreak Investigations 0 0             # People Rec. Post-Exposure 0 0 0 2

    Orders to Appear before CCCHD 0 0             # Vaccinated at Time of Incident 0 5 0 6

   BOH Orders Issued 0 0          # Sent to ODH-Negative 0 6 0 3

   Citations to Appear before BOH 0 0          # Sent to ODH-Positive/*Unsat. 0 0 0 0

    Citations into Court  (*Search Warr.) 0 0 RACCOON:

VECTOR-BORNE (TICKS):          Bite/Non-Bite/Other Events 0 14 0 6

   Consultations 0 2          Total Persons Exposed 0 9 0 2

   # Ticks Received 2 5             # People Rec. Post-Exposure 0 3 0 0

   # Ticks Identified 0 0          # Sent to ODH-Negative 0 8 0 5

   # Ticks Sent to ODH 2 5          # Sent to ODH-Positive/*Unsat. 0 0 0 0

   # Ticks Ident. by ODH/Pending 0 4 BAT: Bite/Non-Bite/Other Events 2 23 0 6

WELLS (PWS):          Total Persons Exposed 5 21 0 1

   Consultations 1 1             # People Rec. Post-Exposure 0 0 0 0

    Licenses/Permits/Orders Issued:          # Sent to ODH-Negative 2 18 1 8

      Alterations 1 16          # Sent to ODH-Positive/*Unsat. 0 1 0 0

      New  5 91 OTHER: 0 0

      Sealing Permits 1 9          Bite/Non-Bite/Other Events 0 5 0 6

   Inspections 9 89          Total Persons Exposed 0 4 0 5

   PWS Contractor Inspections 0 0             # People Rec. Post-Exposure 0 0 0 1

   Re-Inspections 0 0          # Sent to ODH-Negative 0 3 0 2

   New Well Sampling 11 98          # Sent to ODH-Positive/*Unsat. 0 0 0 0

   Dye Tests 0 0 Cases Pending:    Dogs:  5 Cats:  0

PROGRAM:



Type of Referral Current FYTD Referral Sources Current

Help Me Grow-Home Visiting                                            
FY: July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

6 37 Health District 5

Federal Home Visiting (MIECHV)                                             
FY: October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

7 16 Primary Caregiver 3

Moms & Babies First                                             
FY: October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

4 7 4

Total Referrals For November 17 60 5

17

Program
Total           

Served 
Target %

Home 
Visits

Current   FYTD

Help Me Grow 95 91 104% HMG-HV 192 947

Federal (MIECHV) 129 132 98% MIECHV 215 441

Moms & Babies First 27 65 42% MBF 22 42

Total 429 1430

Moms Quit For Two:

Activity Served Activity Enrolled

Safe Sleep Initiative 15 Baby & Me Tobacco Free 35

Activity Served

Safety items distributed this year 356

Division Programs:

Clark County Combined Health District
Early Childhood Division

November 2020

Cribs For Kids:

Referrals 

Families Served in Home Visiting

Other

Total

Moms Quit For Two grant funds Baby & Me Tobacco Free: mom enrolls 
prenatally and can be served up to 1 year after birth of baby

Cribs For Kids: prenatal (last trimester) up to 1 year

WIC

Help Me Grow-Ohio Healthy Families:  prenatal to age 3

Moms & Babies First: funded by Ohio's Black Infant Vitality Program: 
prenatal to age 1

Safety Initiative:

mk 05/07/2020



Ohio Department of Health - Bureau of Health Services
Initial Participation Report - Part B (Charts) - ODHWIC0407

Reporting Month - NOV 2020

Agency Monthly Initial Caseload Trend

600

700

800

900

1,000

1,100

1,200

D
EC

 2
01

8
JA

N
 2

01
9

FE
B 

20
19

M
AR

 2
01

9
AP

R
 2

01
9

M
AY

 2
01

9
JU

N
 2

01
9

JU
L 

20
19

AU
G

 2
01

9
SE

P 
20

19
O

C
T 

20
19

N
O

V 
20

19
D

EC
 2

01
9

JA
N

 2
02

0
FE

B 
20

20
M

AR
 2

02
0

AP
R

 2
02

0
M

AY
 2

02
0

JU
N

 2
02

0
JU

L 
20

20
AU

G
 2

02
0

SE
P 

20
20

O
C

T 
20

20
N

O
V 

20
20

Category Code
Women
Infants
Children

CLARK COUNTY WIC PROGRAM

Dec 4, 2020 - 2 - 11:57:42 AM

4D



Ohio Department of Health - Bureau of Health Services
Initial Participation Report - Part B (Charts) - ODHWIC0407

Reporting Month - NOV 2020

WIC Distribution of Women, Infants and Children Charts

Agency Distribution of Women, Infants and Children

Children
41%

Infants
35%

Women
24%

Children
41%

Infants
35%

Women
24%

CLARK COUNTY WIC PROGRAM

Dec 4, 2020 - 3 - 11:57:42 AM

4D



Ohio Department of Health - Bureau of Health Services
Initial Participation Report - Part B (Charts) - ODHWIC0407

Reporting Month - NOV 2020

WIC Initial Participation by Participant Type Charts

Clinic Initial Participation by Participant Type

Children
40%

Exclusively Bre...
3%

Exclusively B...
2%

Other Infants
31%

Partially Breast Fed Infants
1% Partially Breastfeeding ...

4%
Post-Partum Wo...
8%

Pregnant Wo...
10%

Children
40%

Exclusively Bre...
3%

Exclusively B...
2%

Other Infants
31%

Partially Breast Fed Infants
1% Partially Breastfeeding ...

4%
Post-Partum Wo...
8%

Pregnant Wo...
10%

Clinic 01200

Children
44%

Exclusively B...
5%

Exclusively ...
4%

Other Infants
28%

Partially Breast Fed Infants
2%

Partially Breastfee...
3%

Post-Partum ...
5%

Pregnant Wo...
9%

Children
44%

Exclusively B...
5%

Exclusively ...
4%

Other Infants
28%

Partially Breast Fed Infants
2%

Partially Breastfee...
3%

Post-Partum ...
5%

Pregnant Wo...
9%

Clinic 01231

Dec 4, 2020 - 5 - 12:03:18 PM

4D



O
ct

-2
0

N
ov

-2
0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n-

21
Fe

b-
21

M
ar

-2
1

Ap
r-2

1
M

ay
-2

1
Ju

n-
21

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
Av

er
ag

e
W

om
en

To
ta

l
66

7
64

8
65

8
Pr

eg
na

nt
26

8
27

1
27

0
Ex

cl
us

iv
e 

BF
73

69
71

Pa
rti

al
ly

 B
F

11
5

10
2

10
9

N
on

-B
F

21
1

20
6

20
9

In
fa

nt
To

ta
l

1,
00

1
96

6
98

4
Ex

cl
us

iv
e 

BF
98

90
94

Pa
rti

al
ly

 B
F

46
40

43
N

on
-B

F
85

7
83

6
84

7

C
hi

ld
re

n
To

ta
l

1,
13

2
1,

11
2

1,
12

2

W
IC

 T
ot

al
 C

as
el

oa
d

2,
80

0
2,

72
6

2,
76

3

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

Cl
ar

k 
- A

ve
ra

ge
St

at
e 

- 
Av

er
ag

e
16

46
.1

%
58

.2
%

17
47

.7
%

59
.2

%
18

52
.1

%
60

.6
%

19
52

.1
%

61
.3

%
20

50
.9

%
60

.0
%

21
54

.1
%

62
.8

%
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
02

0-
 5

5.
3%

)

FY
21

:  
Se

pt
em

be
r c

lo
se

 o
ut

/O
ct

ob
er

 &
 N

ov
em

be
r i

ni
tia

l

2,
82

5
-2

.1
9%

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
 &

 C
as

el
oa

d 
of

 W
om

en
, I

nf
an

t, 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 A
ct

iv
e 

in
 C

C
C

H
D

 W
IC

 P
ro

gr
am

CC
 B

re
as

tf
ee

di
ng

 In
iti

at
io

n
AS

SI
G

N
ED

 F
Y2

1 
C

as
el

oa
d 

 
%

 T
ot

al
 C

as
el

oa
d 

D
iff

er
en

ce

4D



Total Births Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Y-T-D

Total
 Previous 12

Month Avg 

2020 84 91 103 93 81 97 99 98 86 86 75 993 91               

2019 98 76 101 87 93 99 122 119 96 96 93 97 1,177 97               

2018 83 88 104 91 116 85 108 80 89 84 95 85 1,108 93               

No. of LBW Newborns

2020 11 13 9 4 5 12 9 7 6 8 4 88 8                 

2019 11 6 7 4 3 13 10 13 8 9 10 9 103 8                 

2018 2 14 9 7 7 7 11 4 6 7 13 5 92 8                 

2020 13.10% 14.29% 8.74% 4.30% 6.17% 12.37% 9.09% 7.14% 6.98% 9.30% 5.33% 8.86% 8.90%

2019 11.22% 7.89% 6.93% 4.60% 3.23% 13.13% 8.20% 10.92% 8.33% 9.38% 10.75% 9.28% 8.75% 8.50%

2018 2.41% 15.91% 8.65% 7.69% 6.03% 8.24% 10.19% 5.00% 6.74% 8.33% 13.68% 5.88% 8.30% 8.80%

Mothers' Ages

Age 0-14

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.1              

2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0.1              

2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0.1              

Age 15-19

2020 12 11 12 7 7 8 6 10 10 12 8 103 10               

2019 8 10 7 10 9 6 8 10 8 8 13 11 108 9                 

2018 11 9 11 12 10 7 13 7 8 10 10 9 117 10               

Age 20-24

2020 30 30 35 35 24 30 30 22 29 21 20 306 28               

2019 39 18 33 27 32 37 37 47 30 27 27 27 381 31               

2018 25 20 39 24 37 19 29 24 32 21 30 16 316 28               

Age 25+

2020 42 47 56 51 50 59 63 66 47 53 47 581 53               

2019 51 48 61 50 52 55 77 62 58 55 52 59 680 57               

2018 47 48 54 55 69 59 65 48 49 53 55 58 660 55               

Nov

3 YEAR COMPARATIVE

 BIRTH DATA
Birth Certificates Issued In November -518 4E



4E

Cause of Death - 2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

 Y-T-D

Total 

Heart Disease 40 38 45 33 44 33 38 37 44 51 45 448

Cancer 19 19 25 25 21 24 26 29 31 24 19 262

Chronic Lower 

Respiratory Disease 15 13 13 10 10 7 15 3 3 3 4 96

Accidents 6 3 3 4 7 5 4 3 5 1 0 41

Cerebrovascular Disease 12 9 10 7 6 11 10 6 12 10 15 108

Alzheimer's Disease 11 14 14 13 9 9 11 11 8 15 7 122

Drug Intoxication 4 3 4 6 7 4 4 4 2 2 0 40

Diabetes 2 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 9

Influenza/Pneumonia 12 5 7 15 6 3 7 7 6 3 6 77

Kidney Related Disease 4 2 3 3 1 5 4 4 2 6 0 34

Septicemia 3 6 3 5 6 1 8 9 9 6 14 70

Suicide 3 0 2 4 3 3 1 3 2 3 0 24

Liver Disease/Cirrhosis 5 2 2 2 0 2 4 4 3 4 1 29

Hypertension 4 4 0 2 0 0 1 1 1 3 0 16

Parkinson's Disease 3 0 2 1 3 5 3 1 0 2 2 22

Other 12 8 15 12 19 15 15 25 29 42 52 244

Pending 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 9 12

  Totals   155 128 149 142 142 127 152 147 160 177 175 0 1,654

Causes of Death - 2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

 Y-T-D

Total 

Heart Disease 38 46 29 31 40 30 34 28 27 28 27 45 403

Cancer 27 22 23 25 28 17 29 30 25 21 24 27 298

Chronic Lower 

Respiratory Disease 15 4 13 15 9 15 14 6 8 7 8 7 121

Accidents 0 1 0 2 3 0 4 2 4 2 3 6 27

Cerebrovascular Disease 5 3 4 9 6 5 7 4 1 6 4 8 62

Alzheimer's Disease 18 7 5 6 9 3 9 4 6 5 9 12 93

Drug Intoxication 6 4 5 2 3 3 4 5 3 6 9 4 54

Diabetes 6 4 2 0 2 2 7 3 1 2 3 0 32

Influenza/Pneumonia 7 7 12 9 7 8 6 10 4 8 8 5 91

Kidney Related Disease 11 5 5 9 4 5 4 7 3 5 5 6 69

Septicemia 3 3 4 3 1 3 5 2 4 4 4 3 39

Suicide 5 1 1 0 4 1 1 2 2 1 5 1 24

Liver Disease/Cirrhosis 3 2 4 1 2 3 5 0 4 3 2 2 31

Hypertension 7 6 5 3 7 2 3 1 3 7 2 4 50

Parkinson's Disease 2 3 0 0 1 1 0 1 2 3 2 1 16

Other 20 15 12 12 11 5 9 9 15 9 19 11 147

Pending 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

  Totals   173 133 124 127 137 103 141 114 112 117 134 142 1,557

"Other" Causes of Death - October - 2020

COVID-19 36
Ethanol Abuse 1
Failure to Thrive 5
Fetal 1
GI Bleed 1
Multi System Failure 4
Pulmonary Embolism 1
Respiratory Failure 2
Toxic Encephalopathy 1

Total 52

VITAL STATISTICS 

 2020 DEATH REPORT Death Certificates Issued in  NOV - 585


	02 BOH Agenda, 121720
	December 17, 2020
	6:00 p.m.

	03 Nov 19  2020 BOH Minutes
	Health Commissioner’s Comments: Mr. Patterson said we know we have some great hope the last week and half with two (2) vaccines as Pfizer and Moderna stage 3 testing has come out and told us they are very effective. He said the benchmark was 50% effec...

	04B Env Health Rept 121720
	04C ECD Board Report-November 2020
	04D WIC Report December 2020
	BOH WIC numbers for December 2020 report
	Sheet1


	04E Vital Stats Rpt 121720
	4E Vital Stats - Birth20
	Birth Rates

	4E Vital Stats - Death 20
	Death Rates





